
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Selectboard Meeting Minutes DRAFT 

July 28, 2025 

 

Present: Patrick Cushing, Chairman 

  Ricky Bowen 

  Bill Vines 

  Jay Hickory 

 

  David Atherton, Town Manager 

 

1. Call to Order 

2. Approval of the Agenda 

3. Approval of the Minutes 

4. Citizen Comments/Concerns 

5. Schedule Discussion for Subdivision Regulation Updates 

6. Approve VHB Amendment #2 for Road Phase 1A Design 

7. Personnel Policy Discussion 

8. Budget Review Discussion 

9. Sign Warrants - Town and GMNGC 

10. Citizen Concerns/Concerns  

11. Selectboard Member Comments/Concerns 

12. Manager’s Report 

13. Executive Session - Personnel.  The appointment, employment, or evaluation of a public 

officer or employee, provided that a public body must make the final hiring or 

appointment decision, and explain its reasons for the decision, in an open meeting.                  

1 V.S.A. § 313(a)(3), to include the Town Manager. 

14. Adjourn 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

1. Call to Order 

The Meeting was called to order at 6:31 pm. 

 

2. Approval of the Agenda 

○ CH Cushing requested to switch Art. 3 (Citizen Comments/Concerns) to after Art. 

4 (Approval of the Minutes).  CH Cushing made a motion to approve the Agenda 

as amended. The motion was unanimously passed. 

 

3. Approval of the Minutes 

○ The Selectboard reviewed the Special Meeting Minutes for July 7th, 2025.  SB 

Bowen made a motion to approve the Special Meeting Minutes for July 7th, 

2025.  SB Vines seconded the motion.  The motion was unanimously passed.  

○ The Selectboard reviewed the Special Meeting Minutes for July 14th, 2025.  SB 

Vines made a motion to approve the Meeting Minutes for July 14th, 2025.  SB 

Bowen seconded the motion.  The motion was unanimously passed.  

 

4. Citizen Comments/Concerns 

○ Jan Rich, Town Resident, expressed concern over the Reorganization of 

Planning & Zoning Department discussion held during the Selectboard Meeting 

on July 14th, 2025.  Rich stated she felt that the recommendation to revert the 

Zoning Administrator from a full-time position to a part-time position was the 

result of a personal vendetta against the current appointee, Jim Haff.  Rich stated 

the Zoning Administrator brought in additional revenue through Town 

development and enforcement of short-term rentals. 

○ Deb Burke, Town Resident, asked whether property owners would have an 

opportunity to discuss with the Town and engineering partners about a future 

sidewalk project.  TM Atherton stated that Town had sent out an RFP (Request 

for Proposals) to select an engineering firm with plans to choose one by the end 

of the year, or the beginning of next year.  TM Atherton confirmed that during the 

design phase, resident input would be requested and a Public Meeting would be 

held. 

○ Paul Demasio, Town Resident, stated that the cobblestone sidewalk on the 

Killington Road towards the Shops at the Shack were in bad condition.  The 

Selectboard stated they were aware of the situation and that the Town plans to 

remove the cobblestone. 

○ Paul Demasio, Town Resident, thanked Fire Chief, Craig Bowman, and the Fire 

Department for their proactive efforts on Hadley Hill Road.  Demasio also 

thanked the Town for the efforts in moving on Hadley Hill Road.  Demasio also 

stated he looked forward to the culverts being fixed within the three-week 

timeline provided by the Town. 

○ George Brant, Town Resident, asked for an update on his question from the 

previous Selectboard Meeting on July 14th, 2025 about the $204,272 dollars that 

was allocated to a solar canopy in the 2024 audit report but was not listed in the 

2024 Town Report.  TM Atherton stated that at the Selectboard Meeting of May 



 

 

25th, 2022, SB Haff made a motion to approved a $204,272 expense note at 

2.5% until it was placed on a ballot, Selectboard approved. TM Atherton stated 

he didn’t believe this funding happened so the money was used from the Capital 

Funds and Restricted Funds from Public Safety, the Library, the Garage, and the 

Town Office.  TM Atherton provided the breakdown with Brant. 

○ Brant, Town Resident, asked how many Town Employees received health 

insurance from the Town.  TM Atherton stated he would have to look into this 

question before he could provide the answer.  Brant also asked what percentage 

Town Employees pay on their deductible.  TM Atherton stated it was 3% towards 

a $6,000 dollar deductible.  The health insurance is set up as a Health 

Reimbursement Plan where the Town would pay up to $4,200 for a Family Plan 

with other plans receiving different reimbursements. 

○ Brant, Town Resident, asked what would happen to the old Town Hall once all 

Town Employees moved to the new Town Hall location.  TM Atherton stated the 

Town would use the building for the Recreation Department and the vault would 

be used for the Town’s Historical Society.  Brant inquired about the expenses 

related to operating the old Town Hall including heating costs and required 

adjustments.  TM Atherton stated the Recreation Department would be running 

the building.   

○ Brant, Town Resident, asked if the Town’s Road Foreman had left the Town.  TM 

Atherton confirmed that the Town’s Road Foreman handed in his two-week 

notice on July 28th, 2025.  Brant suggested that the Selectboard members keep 

comments about Town Employees private and only stated during Executive 

Sessions. 

○ Brant, Town Resident, also expressed that he did not want to see TM Atherton 

assuming additional positions in the Town Office and would like to see him focus 

on his role as Town Manager.  The Selectboard and Town agreed with Brant’s 

statement. 

○ Brant, Town Resident, asked additional questions including whether Town 

Employees are allowed to bring in pets; if Town Employees use time clocks; if 

the Town uses registers when collecting payments; how pensions work in the 

Town; and how the Town Manager is handling overtime.  TM Atherton stated 

Town Employees may bring in pets; the Town does not have time clocks; the 

Town does not have registers but checks and balances are in place when 

collecting payment; the Town uses VMERS Plan B for Town Employee’s 

pensions except for the Town Manager who uses VMERS Plan A and pays the 

difference and; TM  Atherton had advised Town Employees against overtime.  

 

5. Schedule Discussion for Subdivision Regulation Updates 

○ Lisa Davis Lewis, Town Planner, would like to schedule a Selectboard Meeting to 

discuss the Subdivision Regulation updates and some other proposed 

amendments.  She suggested scheduling for 5:30pm on August 11th or August 

25th, 2025. 



 

 

○ SB Bowen made a motion to schedule an open Meeting to discuss the 

Subdivision Regulation Updates for August 11th, 2025 at 5:30pm with Lisa Davis 

Lewis.  SB Vines seconded the motion.  The motion was unanimously passed. 

 

6. Approve VHB Amendment #2 for Road Phase 1A Design 

○ TM Atherton discussed a proposed VHB Amendment for engineering services for 

road design with 1A due to permitting issues with the State.  There are some 

alterations to the storm water system near the Lookout including continued Act 

250 coordination, a continued right of way, and whether utility relocation should 

occur underground or above ground, among other alterations.  The total 

additional cost of the amendment would be $91,359 dollars. The design is almost 

complete for Road Phase 1A. 

○ CH Cushing made a motion to approve VHB Amendment #2 for Road Phase 1A 

Design.  The motion was unanimously approved. 

 

7. Personnel Policy Discussion 

○ TM Atherton stated that the Town is looking to update the Personnel Policy to 

reflect changes made in the State’s recent legislation.  TM Atherton and CH 

Cushing previously met to review these potential changes.  TM Atherton will 

provide a draft to the Selectboard ahead of the next Selectboard Meeting. 

 

8. Budget Review Discussion 

○ SB Vines led the Budget Review discussion.  SB Vines and TM Atherton 

previously spoke on how they are looking to address the budget in two ways.  TM 

Atherton is working with the Department Heads to fill in where they are in the 

process of the budget.  SB Vines is reviewing department records of revenues 

and expenses.  SB Vines discussed his concern about how power and propane 

expenses are being calculated.  He stated that consistency should be used 

across the board when considering these costs.  SB Vines also expressed 

concern over the budgeted material costs being seemingly low.  Overall, SB 

Vines advocated for the Town to verify that they were taking in enough revenue 

while keeping their expenses tight. 

○ George Brant, Town Resident, stated there used to be three traffic lights on 

Killington Road including one at the intersection of Dean Hill Road.  Brant 

requested that the Town consider putting up the traffic light again to help with 

traffic flow during the winter season.  Brant asked whether TIF money could be 

used towards traffic light infrastructure.  TM Atherton agreed that it would be a 

good idea to consider when preparing the design for that section of the road.  TM 

Atherton stated the installation of a traffic light could also be incorporated into the 

RAISE Grant instead of TIF.  Polly Mikula, Town Resident, asked for clarification 

as she believed the entire road project was under TIF including the three traffic 

lights that were currently planned for.  TM Atherton stated no design had been 

completed yet and no design engineer had been hired yet.  Mikula stated that the 

plans were previously approved through VEPC for the TIF project.  TM Atherton 



 

 

stated that it was part of the Killington Forward Project but not the TIF.  TM 

Atherton stated Mikula’s statement was inaccurate but he would confirm. 

 

9. Sign Warrants - Town and GMNGC 

○ SB Bowen made a motion to sign a Warrant for the Town for $1,034,276.87 

dollars.  SB Vines seconded the motion.  The motion was accepted. 

○ SB Bowen made a motion to sign a Warrant for the Town Payroll for $18,397.39 

dollars.  SB Vines seconded the motion.  The motion was accepted. 

○ SB Bowen made a motion to sign a Warrant for the Town Payroll for $91,644.28 

dollars.  SB Vines seconded the motion.  The motion was accepted. 

○ SB Vines made a motion to sign a Warrant for GMNGC for $71,999.28 dollars.  

SB Bowen seconded the motion.  The motion was accepted. 

 

10. Citizen Comments/Concerns 

○ There were none. 

 

11. Selectboard Member Comments/Concerns 

○ There were none. 

 

12. Manager’s Report 

○ TM Atherton reported that Road Phase 1B restarted the previous week at the 

entrance of the Access Road as utility poles are being removed.  Slope work and 

ditching are also being completed on the East side.  The work should be 

completed by the end of the week. 

○ TM Atherton stated that River Road would be temporarily closed on July 31st, 

2025 from the Route 4 entrance to 3879 River Road to replace a culvert. 

○ The Town received a price to pave Winterberry Road in the $40,000 price range.  

The Town has also been in discussion with Pike Industries for work on the 

Access Road for $109,000 dollars.  The Town will remain in discussion. 

 

13. Executive Session - Personnel. The appointment, employment, or evaluation of a 

public officer or employee, provided that a public body must make the final hiring 

or appointment decision, and explain its reasons for the decision, in an open 

meeting. 1 V.S.A. § 313(a)(3), to include the Town Manager. 

○ The Selectboard entered into Executive Session at 7:42pm.  They invited the 

Town Manager to join the Executive Session.  The Selectboard exited Executive 

Session at (time).  No action was taken. 

 

14. Adjourn 

The Meeting was adjourned at (time). 

 

  


